
CHARITABLE TRUST COMMITTEE 
Agenda 
 

Date Wednesday 30 November 2022 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue Shaw Room, Civic Centre, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on 
any item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect 
his/her ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul 
Entwistle or Peter Thompson in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Peter Thompson, Tel. 0161 770 
5151 or email peter.thompson@oldham.gov.uk 
 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

3   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes (Pages 1 - 2) 

 The Minutes of the Charitable Trust Committee held on 28th September 2022 are 
attached for approval. 

6   The Trust of Mrs Sarah Anne Lees (Pages 3 - 6) 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CHARITABLE TRUST COMMITTEE 
28/09/2022 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillors Birch, Byrne, Hamblett and Munroe 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
Peter Thompson – Constitutional Services 

1   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR   

Resolved that Councillor Byrne be appointed Chair of the 
Committee for the 2022/23 Municipal Year. 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ali. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business for the Committee to 
consider. 

5   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions for this meeting of the 
Committee to consider. 

6   MINUTES   

Resolved that the Minutes of the meeting of the Charitable Trust 
Committee, held 23rd March 2022, be approved as a correct 
record. 

7   CLAYTON PLAYING FIELDS TRUST - ANNUAL REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022  

 

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Finance 
that recommended approval of the accounts of the Clayton 
Playing Fields Trust (attached at Appendix A).   

 
The Charity Commission require all charities to hold an annual 
general meeting and approve the latest year’s financial 
statement at the meeting.  It is also a requirement than an 
annual return is sent to the Charity Commission with, amongst 
other things, the main financial details.  The presentation of this 
report and approval of its recommendations would enable the 
Trustees to discharge this requirement.  
 
Resolved: 
That the Committee approves the Clayton Playing Fields Trust 
accounts for the year ended 31st March 2022. 
 

The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 6.10pm  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ADVICE – ENABLING GRANT FUNDING OUT OF CAPITAL MONIES HELD BY THE CHARITY. 

The Charity : The Trust of Mrs Sarah Anne Lees 

This note is based on the Charity Commission’s own guidance as at 24 October 2022 AND also based 

on the advice given to the Council by the Charity Commission in an email dated 24 August 2022 

(“Email”).                                 

In the Email the Charity Commission stated that in its opinion if the Charity Trustees pass a 

resolution under s281 Charities Act 2011 then this will be sufficient to enable the expenditure of the 

permanent endowment for the purposes of the objects of the Charity. 

The Objects of the Charity 

In the Scheme issued by the Charity Commission in 2018 it was confirmed that the object of the 

Charity is: 

“…to advance the education of the public by grant funding charities offering training and learning 

in the life skills necessary to manage financial hardship, social or economic deprivation, social 

exclusion or poor mental or physical health.” 

 

According to s281 Charities Act 2011, if the Charity wishes to make grant funding available on 

application by other suitable charities out of the capital fund (ie permanent endowment) held by 

the Charity,  the following steps will have to be taken by the CTC: 

 

1. STEP 1 – Hold a meeting of the Trustees with a sufficient presence at that meeting to 

enable a decision to be made and the appropriate resolution to be passed.  The Trustees 

should ensure that for the meeting they have confirmation that the annual income to the 

Charity is below £1,000***. 

 

2. STEP 2 – The Trustees need to pass a resolution (if the necessary agreement can be 

reached by the Trustees) that they the Trustees are satisfied that the Charity’s object (see 

above) could be carried out more effectively if the capital of the fund, or the relevant 

portion of the capital, could be expended as well as income accruing to it, rather than just 

such income because, in view of the very small income to the Charity (which is less than 

£1,000 per annum?),  in order to provide an effective level of grant funding in accordance 

with the Charity’s object, it is necessary to be able to use the capital monies held for the 

purposes of such grant funding.  The resolution should therefore be in the following form 

(if the statements in it are accurate and agreed by the Trustees): 

 

“IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Charity’s object can be carried out more effectively if the 

capital of the fund held by the Charity can be expended as well as income accruing to that 

fund, rather than the income accruing only because, in view of the very small income 

received by the Charity (which is less than £1,000 per annum) in order to provide an 

effective level of grant funding in accordance with the Charity’s object, it is necessary to be 

able to use the capital monies held for the purposes of such grant funding and IT IS 

THEREFORE FURTHER RESOLVED that pursuant to and for the purposes of Section 281 

Charities Act 2011 that the Charity’s capital fund (permanent endowment) ought to be 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



 

 

freed from any restrictions with respect to expenditure of capital that apply to it with 

effect from the date of the resolution.” 

 

3. STEP 3 – This Resolution must be kept with the Charity’s records. 

 

4. STEP 4 – It is understood from section 281 Charities Act 2011 that the fund may be 

expended as from such date as is specified for this purpose in the Resolution.  Therefore, 

once the Resolution has been made, the Charity Trustees may proceed to invite from 

appropriate other charities applications to the Charity Trustees for grant funding. 

 

IMPORTANT: The Charity Trustees must at all times bear in mind the object of the Charity 

when considering applications taking into account the nature of the charities making the 

applications and the charitable purposes of those charities to ensure that grant funding is 

properly allocated in accordance with the object of the Charity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND AND RATIONALE FOR ADVICE 

The property which was originally gifted to the Council by Mrs Sarah Anne Lees to be held as charity 

property known as 146 Werneth Hall Road, was sold pursuant to scheme obtained from the Charity 

Commission and its proceeds of sale which are technically permanent endowment are currently held 

by the Charity. 

It is understood that the Charity Trustees are of the view that the best way in which the charitable 

objects of the Charity can be met is for these proceeds not to be invested but for them to be 

donated to other charities which meet the criteria set out in the Charity’s object (see above). 

(Incidentally, according to the Guidance Note referred to by the Charity Commission in their Email 

for “further information”, owing to the fact that this Charity’s governing document does not state 

that the charity can transfer permanent endowment to another charity or charities with similar 

purposes, the following steps have to be taken: 

1. A meeting of the CTC must be held with a sufficient number of trustees present to pass a 

resolution. 

2. Discuss the transfer - you need to agree that it’s the right thing to do, that any receiving 

charity is suitable and all other requirements are met. 

3. Hold a vote - at least two thirds of the trustees voting must be in favour of the transfer 

(don’t count people who abstain from voting). 

4. Decide how the assets will be transferred (especially if transferring to more than one charity) 

and how you will make sure they’re used for similar purposes by the receiving charity. 

5. Ask the commission to approve the resolution and confirm to it that the purposes of the 

receiving charity or charities are substantially similar to yours. 

Page 4



 

 

The Guidance says that applications can only be made online to the Charity Commission if the 

income of the charity is less than £1,000 (which it is) AND the permanent endowment is less 

than £10,000. 

This part of the Guidance appears to conflict with the advice in the Email but in the light of the 

Email (which after all concerned this particular Charity and was sent in response to an 

application for consent) it is suggested that the advice in the Email is taken and that section 281 

Charities Act 2011 is the procedure to be adopted.) 

Therefore, if the income of the charity is less than £1,000, the Charity can proceed to pass a 

resolution under section 281 CA 2011 to enable the Charity to proceed with “transferring” parts 

of the permanent endowment/capital monies of the Charity. Section 281 is set out below: 

 

 

281 Power of unincorporated charities to spend capital: general 

(1) This section applies to any available endowment fund of a charity which is not a company or 

other body corporate. 

(2)  But this section does not apply to a fund if sections 282 to 284 (power to spend larger fund 

given for particular purpose) apply to it. [NOTE – THIS IS WHERE THE INCOME IS OVER £1,000 PER 

ANNUM AND THE PERMANENT ENDOWMENT IS OVER £10,000. THEREFORE, IF INCOME IS LESS 

THAN £1,000 SECTION 282 TO 284 DO NOT APPLY] 

(3)  If the condition in subsection (4) is met in relation to the charity, the charity trustees may 

resolve for the purposes of this section that the fund, or a portion of it, ought to be freed from the 

restrictions with respect to expenditure of capital that apply to it. 

(4) The condition is that the charity trustees are satisfied that the purposes set out in the trusts to 

which the fund is subject could be carried out more effectively if the capital of the fund, or the 

relevant portion of the capital, could be expended as well as income accruing to it, rather than just 

such income. 

(5) Once the charity trustees have passed a resolution under subsection (3), the fund or portion 

may by virtue of this section be expended in carrying out the purposes set out in the trusts to which 

the fund is subject without regard to the restrictions mentioned in that subsection. 

(6) The fund or portion may be so expended as from such date as is specified for this purpose in 

the resolution. 

(7) In this section “available endowment fund”, in relation to a charity, means— 

(a)the whole of the charity's permanent endowment if it is all subject to the same trusts, or 

(b)any part of its permanent endowment which is subject to any particular trusts that are different 

from those to which any other part is subject. 

 

Page 5



 

 

16 November 2022 

Legal and Democratic Services, Oldham Borough Council 

Ref: RB/ZT/20153 

 

 

 

Page 6


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 The Trust of Mrs Sarah Anne Lees

